
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL  

MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, January 6, 2015 
Revised 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JANUARY 6, 2015 

   Page 1 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
01/06/2015 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, January 6, 2015 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 
later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)            Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)     Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)      Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 

 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 

b. Minutes:  October 21, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JANUARY 6, 2015 

   Page 2 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
01/06/2015 
 

4.  PRESENTATIONS – NONE 
 
 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS – NONE 
 
(Clerk note: For this meeting, the reading of ordinances will come before resolutions in 
order to keep proper protocol.) 
 
 
6. ORDINANCES  
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-12:   PUBLIC HEARING/SECOND AND FINAL 
 READING   (Referendum Question – Non-Binding Straw Ballot question related to 
 willingness of voters to pay, if necessary, for road improvements.) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, SUBMITTING TO REFERENDUM A NON-BINDING STRAW 
BALLOT RELATING TO WILLINGNESS OF VOTERS TO PAY ADDITIONAL TAXES, 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS OR OTHER FEES FOR ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS BY THE 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES; PROVIDING FOR BALLOT TITLE AND 
SUMMARY; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE TO BE PUBLISHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
STATE OF FLORIDA ELECTION CODE; PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE, WHEN 
ADOPTED, SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, AS A SPECIAL ELECTION WITH THE TOWN’S GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION ON MARCH 10, 2015, AND PLACED ON THE ELECTION 
BALLOT FOR SAID ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;  PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
7. RESOLUTIONS  
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-01:  (Ballot Language) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, SUPPLEMENTING RESOLUTION 2014-21 TO PROVIDE THE 
PALM BEACH COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS WITH THE BALLOT 
LANGUAGE FOR QUESTIONS TO BE PLACED ON THE BALLOT FOR THE MARCH 10, 
2015, TOWN MUNICIPAL ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JANUARY 6, 2015 

   Page 3 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
01/06/2015 
 

b. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-02:   (Request to waive payment of real property) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, REQUESTING THE PALM BEACH COUNTY COMMISSION TO 
WAIVE PAYMENT BY THE TOWN FOR THE CONVEYANCE OF TITLE TO REAL 
PROPERTY CURRENTLY LEASED BY THE COUNTY TO THE CENTRAL PALM BEACH 
COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AT THE LOXAHATCHEE GROVES PARK,  TO 
THE TOWN AS PART OF THE TOWN’S TRANSACTION TO PURCHASE THE 
CHAMBER’S BUILDING CONSTRUCTED ON THE PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR 
DELIVERY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO PALM BEACH COUNTY; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

c. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-03:  (In support of State Road 7 Extension to 
 Northlake Boulevard) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA EXPRESSING ITS CONTINUING SUPPORT FOR THE EXTENSION 
OF STATE ROAD 7 FROM OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD TO NORTHLAKE 
BOULEVARD; OBJECTING TO THE POSTPONEMENT OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE STATE ROAD 7 EXTENSION AND URGING THAT THE EXTENSION BE 
CONSTRUCTED IN FISCAL YEAR 2016; PROVIDING FOR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

d. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-04:  (Reconsideration of Roadway, Equestrian Trail and 
Greenway Committee (RETGAC) appointment).   

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING RESOLUTION 2011-005, RELATING TO THE TOWN 
“ROADWAY, EQUESTRIAN TRAILS AND GREENWAY ADVISORY COMMITTEE” TO 
AMEND THE PROVISIONS RELATING TO DUTIES, MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES OF 
THE COMMITTEE, AND TO DESCRIBE THE ROLE OF THE COUNCIL LIAISON TO THE 
COMMITTEE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
 

  8.  MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 
 

a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues concerning 
the Town. 
 

 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JANUARY 6, 2015 

   Page 4 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
01/06/2015 
 

9.  OLD BUSINESS  
 

a. Consideration for removal of Keith Harris from the Roadway, Equestrian Trail and 
 Greenway Advisory Committee (RETGAC). 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Consideration of request for removal of 200-foot portion of West D Road on the 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District’s property from the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves’ Gas Tax Map in order to satisfy the September 12, 2014 Code Compliance 
Affidavit of Complaint issued by the Town. 
 

b. Consideration to request the District Board of Supervisors of the Loxahatchee Groves 
Water Control District (LGWCD) to authorize the transfer of B Road to the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves; once the Easement Map is completed and recorded, but prior to the 
commencement of any resurfacing work.   

 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   

 
c. Town Council Members 
 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for January 20, 2015. 
 
 

 
Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Attorney Invoice 

5 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.b. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Minutes 

October 21, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting 

13 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2014 

   Page 1 of 5  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
10/21/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, October 21, 2014 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 
later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)          Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)         Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)          Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.  Present were Mayor David Browning, 
Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang, and Jim Rockett.  Also present 
were Town Manager William F. Underwood, Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, and Town 
Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to approve the Agenda, as presented. 
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA - NONE 

 
 

14 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2014 

   Page 2 of 5  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
10/21/2014 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS - NONE 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS - NONE 
 
 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  - NONE 
 
 
Mayor Browning took a moment to let everyone know that he and his wife Sharyn read 
Bunny Cakes to the Kindergarten class at the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School.   
 

 
6.  RESOLUTIONS (All Items Below Inclusive) 
 

a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT - Traffic Signal at Okeechobee Boulevard and D Road 
Simmons & White, Inc. 
 

Town Manager Underwood reported how the new agenda format will work and explained the 
Simmons and White proposal. 

 
b. Discussion on Simmons and White, Inc. Proposal, and the Town Capital Improvement 

Plan identified a traffic light at Okeechobee Blvd. and D Road. 
 

c. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-15: (Traffic Engineering Services Proposal - Simmons & 
White, Inc.) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA APPROVING THE 
ENGAGEMENT OF, AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
A PROPOSAL FROM, SIMMONS AND WHITE, INC., FOR 
TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES RELATING TO TRAFFIC 
SIGNAL AND ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS AT THE 
OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD AT “D” ROAD INTERSECTION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2014-15.  Vice-
Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Discussion.  

 
Council discussed the need for the traffic light; the petition which had been presented to Council 
having only twenty-five percent (25%) of the signatures being residents of Loxahatchee Groves, 
and that fifty percent (50%) would warrant a more serious review; and meeting with Palm Beach 
County Commissioners concerning the traffic light. 

 
 
 

15 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2014 

   Page 3 of 5  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
10/21/2014 
 

 
Many members of the audience spoke with - concerns for resident health and safety and the 
importance of the traffic light; urges to the Council to reconsider and request that Palm Beach 
County fund the light; opposition of the traffic light; a possible conflict of interest from one of 
the Council members voting on the traffic light; betrayals to the residents if the Town spends 
money on the traffic light; and the need to own and control Okeechobee Boulevard. 
 
Mayor Browning noted there is no one on the Council who would financially benefit. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the title of Resolution No. 2014-15. 
 
Council discussed the continued maintenance and repairs for a traffic light; what would happen 
to the light once Okeechobee Boulevard was widened; wait time for installation; traffic circles; 
alternate locations for the traffic light; and extending the school light in lieu of the light flashing 
yellow after 6:00 p.m. 
 
Upon roll call vote, the motion passed 3/2, with Mayor Browning and Councilman Goltzené 
casting the dissenting votes. 

 
 
7.  ORDINANCES – NONE  
 
 

  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Underwood 
 

a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT:  Updates on various activities and issues concerning the 
Town. 

 
Town Manager Underwood briefly reviewed the bullet points of his Agenda Item Report (AIR) 
update sheet, and answered questions posed by Council basically concerning the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) flood maps. 
 
Mayor Browning asked Town Manager Underwood to conduct research for additional 
information. 
 

 
9.  OLD BUSINESS  
 

a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT: Discussion on status of the Central Palm Beach County 
Chamber of Commerce Building. 

 
Town Manager Underwood advised Council that plans for the acquisition of the Chamber of 
Commerce Building was under way. 

  

16 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2014 

   Page 4 of 5  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
10/21/2014 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a.  AGENDA ITEM REPORT:  IGC Rotation Schedule 
 
Town Manager Underwood reviewed the Inter-Governmental Committee (IGC) rotation 
schedule for meeting attendees.  
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel likes the June 16, 2014, revised rotation schedule the Loxahatchee Groves 
Water Control District sent out, and advised he would take this quarter rotation schedule. 
 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

Roslyn Owen, 13859 22nd Road North, was told by Braeden Garrett, Town Planning Technician, 
to come to Council concerning a setback request she has.  
 
Town Manager Underwood stated that Ms. Owen would have to apply for a variance, which will 
commence the process. 
 
Phyllis Maniglia, 359 West D Road, stated there was still a serious problem in the Palms West 
Plaza with drinking and crime.   She requested Town Manager Underwood come up with some 
remedies, or write a letter to Mr. Yee, the Landlord, to clean up the Plaza and hire security.  The 
stores are losing business, and the garbage is bad as well.  
 
Marge Herzog, 966 A Road, concerning the face of Loxahatchee Groves, wanted to ask the 
Council, what Council Members went to the various board meetings.  The Town does not have 
representation, with such entities as the Palm Beach County League of Cities, and Western 
Communities Board.  Also, the Land Owners will be hosting a forum for various candidates, and 
if anyone has questions they can be sent to Ken Johnson. 
 
Ken Johnson, 15409 Collecting Canal Road, felt the Town has major problems with traffic 
control, especially with cut through traffic, and traffic enforcement.   The Town needs to be more 
proactive as to what is going to happen to the taxpayers in Loxahatchee Groves. The Town needs 
to do something now, and needs the traffic light. Mr. Johnson wanted to know what has been 
done in asking Palm Beach County to fund the light.  He felt progress is coming and we are in 
the crosshairs.   Mr. Johnson also wanted to know if there any ordinance concerning the height of 
building, signage, billboards, lights or size of buildings.  
 

b. Town Attorney   
 

Nothing further, as noted by the end of the meeting, but he did not want to interrupt. 
 
 
 

17 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2014 

   Page 5 of 5  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
10/21/2014 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

Councilman Goltzené noted this was an efficient meeting.  Thanks to everyone. 
 

Vice-Mayor Jarriel also commented on the short meeting, and complimented Town Manager 
Underwood on the Agenda and to keep up the good work. 

 
Councilman Liang felt this beats our previous record, and he was happy about that.  He thanked 
everyone for coming. 

 
Councilman Rockett also thanked everyone for coming. 

 
Mayor Browning noted the Town will need a traffic light at D Road and Okeechobee Boulevard, 
but he does not want the Town to pay for it.   If the developments continue, eventually there will 
be five (5), six (6) lane road by 2035 to handle the traffic from the Acreage.  Palm Beach County 
would have to approve the light.  The Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners will 
be conducting the meeting for Minto West Development on Wednesday, October 29, 2014. 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned 
the meeting at 8:13 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________    ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved during the January 6, 2014 Town Council Meeting. 

18 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6.a. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2014-12  

Public Hearing/Second and Final Reading 

(Referendum Question) 

19 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.a. 

MEETING DATE: 01/06/2015 
      
PREPARED BY:   Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk 

  
 

SUBJECT: Proposed Referendum – A non-binding straw ballot relating to willingness of 
voters to pay, if necessary, for road improvements. 
  
1.   BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  
Legislative Update:  The Council passed Ordinance No. 2014-12 as a Public Hearing/First 
Reading, on December 16, 2014, in order to place a referendum on the March 15, 2015 ballot 
relating to an amendment to the Town Charter.  This ordinance is now up for the Public 
Hearing/Second and Final Reading. 
 

 

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council wants to know if the voters are willing to pay, if 
necessary, for roads improved. 

Problem Solution:   Place a referendum for a non-binding Straw Ballot on payment of Road 
Improvements, within the Town, for consideration by the qualified electors of the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves. 

During the Town Council Meeting of December 2, 2014, the Council directed the Town 
Attorney to draft appropriate enabling legislation to be an addendum to the Road Improvement 
Referendum. 

  
2.   CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 
  

Town Council needs assistance in its further decisions relating to roadway improvement 
policies within the Town. 

  
3.   ATTACHMENTS  
    
 Ordinance No. 2014-12 
  
4.   FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  Costs are undetermined at this time but will be incorporated in Municipal Election Fees. 
  
5.   RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  Request Council approve Ordinance No 2014-12 to allow the qualified electors of the Town to 
vote a referendum on payments for road resurfacing. 

20 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-12 

 

{00048284.2 1574-0702400 }  

 CODING: Words in struck through type are deletion from 
     existing law; words in underlined type are additions 

 
Page 1  

  
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, SUBMITTING TO REFERENDUM 
A NON-BINDING STRAW BALLOT RELATING TO WILLINGNESS OF 
VOTERS TO PAY ADDITIONAL TAXES, SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS OR 
OTHER FEES FOR ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS BY THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES; PROVIDING FOR BALLOT TITLE AND 
SUMMARY; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE TO BE PUBLISHED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH STATE OF FLORIDA ELECTION CODE; 
PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE, WHEN ADOPTED, SHALL BE 
SUBMITTED TO THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, AS A SPECIAL ELECTION WITH THE 
TOWN’S GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION ON MARCH 10, 2015, AND 
PLACED ON THE ELECTION BALLOT FOR SAID ELECTION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;  PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, issues of roadways and improvements thereto are important to the residents of 

the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of 

the Town to propose a ballot question to the electorate of the Town in the nature of a non-binding 

straw ballot to assist the Town Council in its future decisions relating to roadway improvement 

policies within the Town, specifically as to payment for such improvements.   

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption hereof. 

 Section 2.  

The Ballot Title shall be as follows: 
  
NON-BINDING STRAW BALLOT ON WILLINGNESS TO PAY FOR ROAD 
RESURFACING WITHIN THE TOWN 
 

21 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-12 

 

{00048284.2 1574-0702400 }  

 CODING: Words in struck through type are deletion from 
     existing law; words in underlined type are additions 

 
Page 2  

 Section 3. At the special election with the Town’s general municipal election on March 

10, 2015, the following question shall be placed on the ballot for consideration by the qualified 

electors of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and shall read as follows: 

This question is a non-binding opinion poll intended to provide feedback to the 
Town Council.  No taxes, assessments or fees are levied as a result of this opinion 
poll; however, members of the Town Council may rely on this opinion poll in 
reviewing future policies for funding resurfacing of public roads within the Town.  
Are you willing to pay additional taxes, special assessments or fees to fund 
resurfacing of public dirt roads within the Town?      
 
This non-binding ballot question has no financial impact to the Town. 
 

YES  NO  
 
 Section 4. Advertisement.  The Town Clerk of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves is 

hereby authorized and directed to advertise the referendum contemplated herein in accordance with 

the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, as well as the State of Florida 

Election Code. 

 Section 5. Referendum Election.  Pursuant to Section 166.031(1), Florida Statutes, the 

Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby calls a special election to be conducted 

with the Town’s municipal election on March 10, 2015, for the purpose of placing the referendum 

to a vote of the electors of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves.          

 Section 6. Severability. If any clause, section, or other part of this Ordinance shall be 

held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutional 

or invalid part shall be considered as eliminated and in no way affecting the validity of the other 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

22 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-12 

 

{00048284.2 1574-0702400 }  

 CODING: Words in struck through type are deletion from 
     existing law; words in underlined type are additions 

 
Page 3  

 Section 7. Conflicts. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions, or parts of 

Resolutions in conflict herewith,  be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its 

adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON THE FIRST READING, THIS 16th  DAY 
OF DECEMBER, 2014. 

PASSED ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ON THE SECOND AND FINAL READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
__________________. 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA  
 

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
   
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
   
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney 

23 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.a.b.c.d. 

RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution No. 2015-01 (Ballot Language) 

Resolution No. 2015-02 (Payment Waiver) 

Resolution No. 2015-03 (Support of SR 7) 

Resolution No. 2015-04 (RETGAC Appointment) 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

24 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.a. 

MEETING DATE: 01/06/2015 
      
PREPARED BY:   Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk  

 
 

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 2015-01 relaying ballot language for questions to be placed on 
the Town Municipal Election ballot - March 10, 2015. 
  
1.      BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
      

  

a. Problem Statement:  The Supervisor of Elections (SOE) has requested the Town submit all 
referendum questions within a resolution format; otherwise, she will not place the questions on 
the ballot. 

b. Problem Solution:  Approve Resolution No. 2015-01, in order to secure referenda language 
on the ballot. 

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

 
During the Meeting of December 2, 2014, the Town Council approved Resolution No. 2014-21, 
along with the 2015 Agreement with the Supervisor of Elections. As part of the Agreement any 
ballot language would have to be submitted to the SOE in resolution form. 

  
3.        ATTACHMENTS  

Resolution No. 2015-01 
 

4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  N/A  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  Request Council consider approval of Resolution No. 2015-01. 

25 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00051312.2 1574-0702400 }  

 
 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-01 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, SUPPLEMENTING 
RESOLUTION 2014-21 TO PROVIDE THE PALM BEACH COUNTY 
SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS WITH THE BALLOT LANGUAGE FOR 
QUESTIONS TO BE PLACED ON THE BALLOT FOR THE MARCH 10, 
2015, TOWN MUNICIPAL ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 
SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves shall conduct its annual Municipal 

General Election on Tuesday, March 10, 2015, pursuant to the Town Charter, the Florida 

Constitution and Chapter 97 - Chapter 106, Florida Statutes. 

WHEREAS, the Town Council approved Resolution 2014-21 on December 2, 2014, 

through which the Town Council approved the Agreement for Vote Processing Equipment and 

Election Services By and Between the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections and the Town 

of Loxahatchee Groves(SOE Agreement); and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves has adopted 

Ordinances 2014-10, 2014-11, and 2014-12, authorizing the placement of one charter 

amendment question and two straw ballot questions on the ballot for the March 10, 2015 Town 

municipal election; and,  

WHEREAS, paragraph 4(A)(1) of the SOE Agreement states that the Town shall 

provide ballot language for any ballot questions within the resolution; and,  

26 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00051312.2 1574-0702400 }  

WHEREAS, the Town Council hereby supplements Resolution 2014-21 to provide the 

ballot language for the three (3) approved ballot questions for the March 10, 2015, Town 

municipal election to the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections pursuant to the SOE 

Agreement.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

 
Section 2.  The Town Council has authorized three (3) referenda questions be placed on 

the Town’s ballot for the March 10, 2015, Town municipal election.  

 
a. The ballot language for ballot question #1 is as follows: 

 
ELECTION PROVISIONS OF CHARTER CONVERTED TO ORDINANCES 

 
The Town Charter contains election provisions relating to electors, 
nonpartisan elections, election dates, runoff elections, canvassing board, 
special elections and general elections.  Converting these provisions into a 
Town ordinance will enable the Town Council to amend Town election 
provisions by ordinance without referenda.  Should the Town Charter be 
amended to remove these provisions and convert them into a Town ordinance?  
 
This proposed amendment has no financial impact to the Town 

 
YES  NO  
 
 
 

b. The ballot language for ballot question #2 is as follows: 
 
NON-BINDING STRAW BALLOT ON ROAD IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE 
TOWN 
 
This question is a non-binding opinion poll intended to provide feedback to the Town 
Council on determining whether to resurface roadways within the Town.  The Town’s 

27 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00051312.2 1574-0702400 }  

public roads are mainly dirt roads, and recently several roads have been resurfaced.  
Members of the Town Council may rely on this opinion poll in reviewing future 
policy.  Do you support the resurfacing of dirt roads within the Town?    

 
This non-binding ballot question has no financial impact to the Town. 
 
YES  NO  
 
 

c. The ballot language for ballot question #3 is as follows: 
 

NON-BINDING STRAW BALLOT ON WILLINGNESS TO PAY FOR ROAD 
RESURFACING WITHIN THE TOWN 
 
This question is a non-binding opinion poll intended to provide feedback to the Town 
Council.  No taxes, assessments or fees are levied as a result of this opinion poll; 
however, members of the Town Council may rely on this opinion poll in reviewing 
future policies for funding resurfacing of public roads within the Town.  Are you 
willing to pay additional taxes, special assessments or fees to fund resurfacing of 
public dirt roads within the Town?      
 
This non-binding ballot question has no financial impact to the Town. 
 
YES  NO  

 
 

Section 3.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 

to the extent of such conflict. 

 
Section 4.  If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

 
Section 5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

  
  

28 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00051312.2 1574-0702400 }  

ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, This 6th day of January, 2015.  

 
      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
      FLORIDA 

 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Mayor David Browning  
 
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk    Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel  
      
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
      
Office of the Town Attorney 
 

29 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 

Town Council  
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.b. 

MEETING DATE: 1/6/2015 
 
PREPARED BY:   

 

William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
  

SUBJECT:  Requesting Land Donation from Palm Beach County to the Town of Loxahatchee 
related to the Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce Building.   
  

1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council expressed its desire to own the land beneath and 
parking around the Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce building on F Road 
donated to the Town.  
 
Problem Solution:   Town Council submits a Resolution requesting the land be donated to the 
Town.  

The Town has been negotiating with the Chamber Executive over the purchase price of the 
building located at Southern Boulevard and F Road.  One of the issues the Council has presented 
is its desire to own the land and parking lot upon which the building is situated.   
 

Mayor, Council, and staff have individually spoken to the County Commission and staff 
regarding the possibility the County donate the land to the Town.   

  

2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

  

Staff had a resolution prepared that accurately reflects the need and support for the County to 
grant the land to the Town as the County has done in other municipalities over the years.  Staff 
believes that a resolution of support for such action will reflect the Town Council position 
relative to the land donation.  We understand: 
 

• It is in the best interest of the Town, its residents and taxpayers, for the Town to also 
obtain ownership of the Leased Property on which the Chamber Building and associated 
improvements are located 

• That it is the policy of Palm Beach County that County Administration must recommend 
a purchase price for all real property to be conveyed by the County 

• That the County Commission may waive the requirement of payment for such a 
conveyance  

• That a waiver of payment by the Town to the County, for the conveyance of title to the 
Leased Property, is in the best interest of both the Town and Palm Beach County, as well 
as the residents and taxpayers of both entities 

  

3.  ATTACHMENTS  
   • Resolution urging the County Commission donate the land to the Town.  

 

4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 None relative to this action. 
 

   5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  Motion to approve resolution and submit to appropriate individuals and entities.  
30 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00051531.1 1574-0702400 }  

 
 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-02 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, REQUESTING THE PALM 
BEACH COUNTY COMMISSION TO WAIVE PAYMENT BY THE 
TOWN FOR THE CONVEYANCE OF TITLE TO REAL PROPERTY 
CURRENTLY LEASED BY THE COUNTY TO THE CENTRAL PALM 
BEACH COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AT THE 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES PARK,  TO THE TOWN AS PART OF THE 
TOWN’S TRANSACTION TO PURCHASE THE CHAMBER’S 
BUILDING CONSTRUCTED ON THE PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR 
DELIVERY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO PALM BEACH COUNTY; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Palm Beach County currently has a long-term  lease, with rental payments 

of $1.00 per year, with the Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce (“Chamber”), for 

a 1.32 +/- acre portion of County-owned property within the Loxahatchee Groves Park 

(hereinafter the “Leased Property”), on which the Chamber constructed a building for use as 

offices for the Chamber; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town and the Chamber have entered into negotiations for the purchase 

of the Chamber’s building on the Leased Property; and,  

WHEREAS, given the anticipated purchase price for the Chamber Building, the Town 

Council believes that it is in the best interest of the Town, its residents and taxpayers, for the 

Town to also obtain ownership of the Leased Property on which the Chamber Building and 

associated improvements are located; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Manager has requested Palm Beach County to convey title of the 

Leased Property to the Town; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Manager has been advised that it is the policy of Palm Beach 

County that County Administration must recommend a purchase price for all real property to be 

31 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00051531.1 1574-0702400 }  

conveyed by the County, but that the County Commission may waive the requirement of 

payment for such a conveyance; and,  

WHEREAS, for the reasons set forth herein, the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves finds that a waiver of payment by the Town to the County, for the 

conveyance of title to the Leased Property, in in the best interest of both the Town and Palm 

Beach County, as well as the residents and taxpayers of both entities. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 
being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 
 

Section 2.  The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby makes the 
following findings in support of its request for the Palm Beach County Commission to waive 
payment from the Town for the conveyance of title to the Leased Property: 

 
a. The Town is a governmental entity, and any payment to the County would be public 

dollars; 
b. The Town is purchasing the Chamber Building for use as Town offices;   
c. The Town’s purchase of the Chamber Building and the Leased Property will assure 

that title to the Leased Property will remain public and that the Leased Property will 
be used for public purposes; 

d. The Town having a permanent presence within the County’s Loxahatchee Groves 
Park, on the Leased Property, could be useful for the County, as Town staff will be 
present during business hours and available to observe and assist with any issues at 
the Park; and,  

e. Having government offices on the Leased Property will afford the County an option 
for meetings with local officials, and residents from the Town as well as surrounding 
areas; and,  

f. A waiver of payment for the conveyance of title is consistent with coordination and 
collaboration of governmental entities for the benefit of the public, as the funds that 
would be used to pay for the title could be used for other projects or public purposes 
within the Town, while at the same time the County is not losing any revenues that it 
is currently receiving from use of the Leased Property given the approximately 24 
years remaining on the current lease with nominal annual payments of only $1.00.   

 
Section 3.  For the foregoing reasons, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves requests the Palm Beach County Commission to waive any requirement for payment 
from the Town for conveyance of title of the Leased Property from the County to the Town in 
association with the Town’s purchase of the Chamber Building located on the Leased Property. 

32 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00051531.1 1574-0702400 }  

 
Section 4. Copies of this Resolution shall be delivered to all members of the Palm 

Beach County Commission, and the County Administrator.   
 
Section 5.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 6.  If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

 
Section 7.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 
  

ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, This 6th day of January, 2015.  

 
      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
      FLORIDA 

 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Mayor David Browning  
 
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
     
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
       ____________________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
      
Office of the Town Attorney 

33 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 

Town Council  
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.c. 

MEETING DATE: 1/6/2015 

 
PREPARED BY:   

 
William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
  

SUBJECT:  Continuing Support for State Road 7 Extension.   
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town received a request from the Western Communities Council to 
support actions of the MPO and request the extension of State Road 7 to Northlake Boulevard in 
Fiscal Year 2016.  

Problem Solution:   Adopt a resolution in support of the State Road 7 extension. 

The Town received a request from the Western Communities Council to support the Council’s 
December 12, 2014, action adopting Resolution 2015-001, supporting the actions of the MPO 
and requesting that the extension of State Road 7 to Northlake Boulevard be constructed in Fiscal 
Year 2016.   

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

  
The Town drafted a resolution based upon the model provided and attached it hereto for Council 
consideration.  
 

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
   • Letter of December 12, 2014, Requesting Support 

• Resolution No. 2015-03 in support 
 

4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 N/A. 
 
   5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
  Motion to adopt Resolution 2015 -03. 

34 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-03 
 

{00050686.1 1574-0702400 }  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA EXPRESSING ITS CONTINUING 
SUPPORT FOR THE EXTENSION OF STATE ROAD 7 FROM 
OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD TO NORTHLAKE BOULEVARD; 
OBJECTING TO THE POSTPONEMENT OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE STATE ROAD 7 EXTENSION AND URGING THAT THE 
EXTENSION BE CONSTRUCTED IN FISCAL YEAR 2016; PROVIDING 
FOR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves’ residents and businesses rely on the 

ability to use roadways in the area; and 

 WHEREAS, since 1999 the Western Communities have supported the extension of State 

Road 7 from Okeechobee Boulevard to Northlake Boulevard as an important roadway to address 

traffic needs in and around the Western Communities; and,      

 WHEREAS, in 2011, the Town Council adopted Resolution 2011-009, urging the Palm 

Beach County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) to maintain the extension of State 

Road 7 to Northlake Boulevard in the 5-year transportation improvement program (TIP); and,  

 WHEREAS, the program for the extension of State Road 7 to Northlake Boulevard 

currently calls for its construction in Fiscal Year 2016; and,  

 WHEREAS, Palm Beach County is contemplating delaying the construction of the 

extension of State Road 7 to Northlake Boulevard until Fiscal Year 2020; and,  

 WHEREAS, at its December 8, 2014, meeting the MPO objected to the delay in the 

construction of the extension of State Road 7 to Northlake Boulevard until Fiscal Year 2020, and 

requested that it be funded in Fiscal Years 2016-2019; and,  

35 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-03 
 

{00050686.1 1574-0702400 } Page 2 of 3 

 WHEREAS, at its December 12, 2014, meeting the Western Communities Council 

adopted Resolution 2015-001, supporting the actions of the MPO and requesting that the 

extension of State Road 7 to Northlake Boulevard be constructed in Fiscal Year 2016; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves finds it to be in the 

best interests of the Town to support the actions of the MPO, and to request that the extension of 

State Road 7 to Northlake Boulevard be constructed in Fiscal Year 2016.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2. The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, continues 

its support for the extension of State Road 7 to Northlake Boulevard, supports the position of the 

MPO that the construction of the extension not be delayed until Fiscal Year 2020, and urges that 

the extension be constructed in Fiscal Year 2016.     

  Section 3. The Town Clerk is directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to the 

MPO, all members of the Palm Beach County Commission, the Palm Beach County 

Administrator, and the Secretary of the Western Communities Council, Inc.  

Section 4. If any clause, section, or other part or application of this Resolution shall 

be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such 

unconstitutional or invalid part or application shall be considered as eliminated and so not 

affecting the validity of the remaining portions or applications remaining in full force and effect. 

36 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-03 
 

{00050686.1 1574-0702400 } Page 3 of 3 

 Section 5. All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith be and the 

same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 6. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, this 6th day of January, 2015.  

 
ATTEST:      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
        FLORIDA 
_______________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk             __________________________________ 
        Mayor David Browning  
 
            __________________________________ 
        Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
      
                __________________________________ 
        Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
        __________________________________ 
        Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  _________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
______________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney  

37 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 

Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.d. 

MEETING DATE: 1/6/2015 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, ICMA-CM 

 
SUBJECT: Amending Resolution 2011-05 relating to Roadway, Equestrian Trails and 
Greenways Advisory Committee. 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: The Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenways Advisory Committee’s 
enabling legislation requires additional clarification.    
 
Problem Solution:  Town Council provided guidance to the Town Attorney to more accurately 
delineate the duties and responsibilities of the committee at the November 4, 2014 Meeting.  

 

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
   
Town Attorney has drafted a Resolution amending Resolution 2011-05 amending the provisions 
relating to duties, meetings, and procedures of the Committee, and to describe the role of the 
Council Liaison to the Committee. 
  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
  
 Resolution 2015-04 
 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  N/A  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
  Motion to adopt the Resolution. 



 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-04 
 

 

{00046215.2 1574-0702400 }  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
RESOLUTION 2011-005, RELATING TO THE TOWN 
“ROADWAY, EQUESTRIAN TRAILS AND GREENWAY 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE” TO AMEND THE PROVISIONS 
RELATING TO DUTIES, MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES OF 
THE COMMITTEE, AND TO DESCRIBE THE ROLE OF THE 
COUNCIL LIAISON TO THE COMMITTEE; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2011-005, the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, created the “Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory 

Committee” to advise the Town Council as to issues related to roadways, multi-purpose and 

equestrian trails, greenways, parks and related water issues; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that amending the duties of the Roadway, Equestrian 

Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee, as well as, describing the role of the Council liaison, is 

in the best interests of the residents of the Town. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves, Florida, as follows:  

Section 1.  That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are confirmed and ratified as being 

true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution.  

Section 2.  Section 2 of Resolution 2011-005 is amended as follows:  

I.  Creation of the “Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory 
Committee.”  There is created the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway 
Advisory Committee to act as an advisory board to the Town Council, as follows:  

 
(A) Qualifications. Each member of the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and 

Greenway Advisory Committee shall be a resident of the Town.  

39 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-04 
 

{00046215.2 1574-0702400 } 2 

 
(B) Duties. The Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory 

Committee’s duties are to review only those matters directed to it by the 
Town Council, which matters may include:, but are not limited to: 

 
1. Reviewing and analyzing projects relating to roadways, multi-purpose 

and equestrian trails, greenways, parks and related water issues as may 
be assigned to it by the Town Council from time to time;  

2. Making recommendations to the Town Council on the enhancement, 
improvement and development of roadways, multi-purpose and 
equestrian trails, greenways, parks and related water issues within the 
Town; and,   

3. Reviewing possible grant opportunities, preparing grant applications 
making recommendations thereon to the Town Council. 

4. Any other matter relating to roadways, multi-purpose and equestrian 
trails, greenways, parks and related water issues the Town Council may 
determine should be reviewed by the Committee.  

 
(C) The Committee shall be comprised of five (5) voting members, to be appointed 
by individual Town Council Members. 
  
(D)  The Town Council shall appoint one member of the Town Council to serve 
as a non-voting liaison to the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory 
Committee.  The Town Council liaison shall serve as a conduit to provide 
information between the Town Council and the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and 
Greenway Advisory Committee.  
  
(E)  The voting members shall serve at the pleasure of the Town Council. The 
terms of the voting members shall run concurrently with the term of the Council 
Member who nominated the voting member to the Committee.  
 
(F)  An attendance requirement shall be imposed on all members of the 
Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee. Unless excuse of 
absence is granted by the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory 
Committee, a member of the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory 
Committee shall be removed by the Town Council if he/she has missed three five  
(35) consecutive meetings of the Committee within a twelve (12) month period. 
  

40 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-04 
 

{00046215.2 1574-0702400 } 3 

(G)  Committee members, and/or companies or employers in which the members 
have a direct financial interest, shall not do business with the Town, in accordance 
with Florida Statutes 112.313, and pertinent opinions of the Florida Commission on 
Ethics. If any member of the Committee finds that his/her personal interests are 
involved in any matter coming before the Town Council, he/she shall disqualify 
himself/herself from all participation in the matter.  
 
(H)  If a regular member of the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway 
Advisory Committee resigns or is removed from his or her position, the nominating 
Council Member shall appoint the replacement.  

 
II.  Advisory Only. The actions, decisions, and recommendations of the Roadway, 

Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee shall be advisory only.  
 

III.  Meetings, Dates, Procedures, Records, Quorum, and Compensation. 
  

(A)  The Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee shall 
hold an organizational meeting at the first scheduled meeting following the 
appointment of the members of the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway 
Advisory Committee. The purpose of the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway 
Advisory Committee organizational meeting is for the members to elect a Chair and 
Vice Chair from its voting membership for terms of one (1) year. 
 
(B)  The Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee will 
meet only when needed to review matters directed to it by the Town Council 
pursuant to subsection I(B) above.  At such meetings, the Roadway, Equestrian 
Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee shall limit its business to the matters 
directed to it by the Town Council. 
The Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee shall meet on a 
regular or as-needed basis, as determined by the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and 
Greenway Advisory Committee. 
 
(C)  All meetings, records and files of the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and 
Greenway Advisory Committee shall be open and available to the public, consistent 
with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (the Public Records Law) and Chapter 286, 
Florida Statutes (the “Sunshine Law”). In addition, members of the Roadway, 
Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee shall ensure that their actions 
are in compliance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (the “Public Records Law”) 
and Chapter 286, Florida Statutes (the “Sunshine Law”). 
 
(D)  Notice for any meeting of the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway 
Advisory Committee shall be posted in accordance with Chapter 286, Florida 

41 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-04 
 

{00046215.2 1574-0702400 } 4 

Statutes (the “Sunshine Law”) and on the Town’s website and at the Town Office no 
later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 
 
(E)  Three (3) voting members in attendance shall constitute a quorum of the 
Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee. 
 
(F) The Town Manager or his\her designee shall act as secretary to the 
Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee, and be responsible 
for attending all meetings and providing the items necessary for conducting 
meetings, as requested by the Chair and for recording and preparation of meeting 
minutes. The Town Attorney or his\her designee shall act as attorney for the 
Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee, on an as-needed 
basis. 
 
(G)  Town staff will reasonably provide adequate support to the Committee to 
discharge its responsibilities as assigned by the Town Council.  
 
(H)  Members of the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory 
Committee shall serve without compensation for the performance of their duties.  

 
Section 3.  Severability. If any clause, section, or other part or application of this 

Resolution shall be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, 

such unconstitutional or invalid part or application shall be considered as eliminated, and so not 

affecting the validity of the remaining portions or applications remaining in full force and effect.  

Section 4.  Conflicts. All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are to 

the extent of such conflicts hereby repealed.  

 

 

 

 

42 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-04 
 

{00046215.2 1574-0702400 } 5 

Section 5.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effective immediately upon its 

adoption.  

ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, this 6th day of January, 2015.  

 
ATTEST:      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
        FLORIDA 
_______________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk             __________________________________ 
        Mayor David Browning  
 
             __________________________________ 
        Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
      
                 __________________________________ 
        Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
        __________________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
        __________________________________ 
______________________________  Council Member Jim Rockett 
Office of the Town Attorney 

43 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.a. 

Manager’s Report 

44 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 

Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.a. 

MEETING DATE: 1/6/2015 

 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 

  
SUBJECT:  Manager Update  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council requests updates on activities and issues. 
 
Problem Solution:   Provide the Council with an update. 

The Council requested they be updated on the various issues facing the Town, it is noted that 
items in this category be provided as part of a written report. 
 

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

  
• Trails: At the Town Council meeting of 11/18/2014, the Council approved the Town 

drafted ILA for funding the trails, maintenance easements, and roads.  The ILA was 
transmitted to the LGWCD on Wednesday, 11/19/2014.    

o Subsequent to the ILA transmittal, the Town Attorney, and staff met with the 
LGWCD attorney and administrator on Friday, 11/21/2014, at the office of the 
District’s attorney.   

o Substantial progress was made.  The Town attorney provided the District’s 
attorney with a summary of the discussion points to be incorporated within a 
jointly prepared ILA. 

o On or about December 3, the Town received comments from the attorney for the 
LGWCD. 

o On December 9, the Town Attorney and I were reviewing the points of the 
agreement.   

o This working group will labor to complete the agreement and present to the 
respective legislative boards as soon as practical.  

o As of December 30, 2014, the Town is on hold pending a response from LGWCD.  
• Building:  Discussions with Atlantic Land Companies regarding their site plan occurred 

and this item is scheduled for the P&Z review in December.   
o The site plan was approved by the LPA at its December meeting. 

• Building:  Update to work related to the Chamber of Commerce building was included in 
the November 18, 2014 agenda.  The Council instructed staff to begin negotiations with 
the Chamber of Commerce staff. 

45 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



o Staff has entered this discussion, the Town Attorney and staff had a teleconference 
to draft a contract for the acquisition. 

o A teleconference was held on 11/24/2014 with Wayne Burns, Executive Director 
of the Chamber. 

o Staff is attempting to finalize negotiations and should be able to complete the 
process and present a contract for purchase at the 12/16/2014 Council meeting. 

o On December 4, 2014, staff and Vice Mayor Jarriel attended the Tri-cities League 
BBQ in Belle Glade.   

o December 9th, the Town Attorney and I received a revised contract from the 
Chamber of Commerce which included significant changes, some of substance, to 
the contract the Town submitted. 

o Due to some of the items included in the revised contract, I feel it is necessary to 
delay the contract consideration until the January meeting. 

o Staff continues to be in discussions with various parties on this subject.  Staff 
members and Town Attorney have been actively pursuing a positive response 
from the County regarding a donation of the land. 

• Traffic:  Staff is working with Minto to draft an agreement between Minto and the Town 
for the funding of the traffic light at Okeechobee Boulevard and D Road. 

o A discussion with Minto’s attorney on December 29, 2014, indicated Palm Beach 
County would agree for the Town and Minto to enter into a funding agreement 
which may exclude the County. 

• Building:  Staff had a meeting with the Day property representative to preliminary 
discuss the prospective site plan for the property on Tuesday, December 9.  The meeting 
was to review site plan requirements and process 

o We reviewed the site plan submission requirements 
o Discussed the site plan specifically  

 addressing conditions of approval 
 perimeter landscaping buffer requirements 
 horse trail potential 

o Timing of submittal and hearings 
 PBC manages traffic related issues and may need to be at meetings 
 LGWCD to affirm positive outfall for drainage 
 Interconnection to westerly property discussion 
 Set RETGAC meeting for January 2015 
 P&Z meeting for January 2015 
 About March present to Town Council.  

o No Activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting.  
• Roads:  This office met with Angela Hendrichsen Sandoval, P. E., PMP, Section Leader, 

and Ken Mudd, Resource Professional IV, representing South Florida Water Management 
District (SFWMD) in reference to a permit the SFWMD issued in 1982 for a road and 
swale improvement on 43rd.  As I understand the purpose of the meeting, SFWMD was 
looking to determine whether or not the Town would assist them in correcting a 
deficiency in the road and swale drainage system on the road.  The Town will be 
contacted in the future regarding the next step to be taken to correct the problem.  

o No activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting. 
• Roads:  Negotiations continue for B Road improvements which will go from Southern 

Boulevard to Okeechobee Boulevard.   
o Staff was working toward holding the second hearing on an ordinance in 

November to provide appropriate zoning classification to the involved parcels.   

46 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



o Initially, staff worked to have this item tentatively move forward for the December 
2, 2014 Council Meeting. 
 This effort is being moved to a January timeframe. 

o Town Attorney and I met with the working group on Friday 11/21/2014 in West 
Palm Beach.  Significant discussion occurred and the Town Attorney and I 
reiterated the Town Council position that no funding will come from the Town for 
this improvement. 

o The LGWCD will be providing necessary easement for this road prior to the 
project initiation.  

o Another meeting was held on 12/30/2014 in preparation of a January approval 
meeting. There continue to be funding issues to be resolved in order to protect the 
Town from incurring any cost. 

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
     
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  Not applicable.  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  
Motion to receive and file report. 
 
 

47 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.a. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Removal of RETGAC Member 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 

Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.a. 

MEETING DATE: 1/6/2015 
 
PREPARED BY:   

 
Mike Cirullo, Town Attorney 
  

SUBJECT:  Reconsideration of Membership on RETGAC  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Legislative Update:  At the December 16, 2014 Town Council Meeting, the Council voted to 
reconsider the RETGAC member removal.  The subsequent action is to ratify the action taken 
at the November 4, 2014. 

Problem Statement:  Town Councilman requests removal of his member from the Roadway, 
Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee.  
 
Problem Solution:   Town Council vote to remove member. 

At the Council meeting of December 16, 2014, the Town Council reconsidered its action 
regarding the removal of a member from the Roadway, Equestrian Trail and Greenway Advisory 
Committee.  The motion to reconsider was approved.   

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
     

Town Council should take a new action. 
  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
    None 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

 Not applicable. 
 5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  Town Council determine action regarding the removal of Roadway, Equestrian Trails and 
Greenway Advisory Committee member.  



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.a. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Remove 200-foot portion of West D Road 

48 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 

Town Council  
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.a. 

MEETING DATE: 1/6/2015 
 
PREPARED BY:   

 
William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
  

SUBJECT:  Consideration to Remove West D Road West from Gas Tax Map.   
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town received a request from the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control 
District (WCD) to remove the southern portion of West D Road from the Gas Tax Map  
 
Problem Solution:   Town Council needs to determine the answer of the request. 

The Town received a code enforcement complaint regarding fence enclosure of the southern 
portion of West D Road at the offices of the WCD.  Subsequent to the compliant, code 
enforcement staff determined that a public road is dedicated on the east of the property.   

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

  
The Town received a response from the WCD Administrator indicating the road in question was 
not in the purview of the Town’s code enforcement compliance based on the opinion of the 
WCD’s attorney. 
 
Town staff submitted a response to the Administrator indicating the Town has and is receiving 
funds from the State based on that mileage as it was submitted by the WCD at the time of the 
Town’s incorporation.  Additionally, staff advised that Town Council past actions indicated that 
either the WCD relocate the fence or the WCD request the Town remove this portion from the 
gas tax map. 
 
The Town has received a letter dated December 12, 2014; request the removal of a 200-foot 
portion of West D Road from the Gas Tax Map. 

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
   • Letter Requesting Removal 

• Email to District Administrator with Options 
• Sketch Boundary Survey by Horizon Surveyors, Inc., dated June 4, 1998 
• Chain Sheet for Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator, P. A., prepared by Kim 

Mangerian dated October 9, 2014 by Attorneys’ Title Fund Services, LLC 
 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 Estimated revenue should be reduced by approximately $117 per year. 
 
   5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  Council provides direction to staff and Town Attorney regarding the removal of this section from 
the gas tax map.  

49 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



52 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



54 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



55 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



56 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



57 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



58 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



59 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



60 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.b. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Request to transfer B Road to Town 

61 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.b. 

MEETING DATE: 1/6/2015 
 
PREPARED BY:   

 
Perla D. Underwood 
  

SUBJECT:  Request Conveyance of south B Road from LGWCD 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: South “B” Road must be designated a Town Road before commencement 
of improvements by the Town. 

Problem Solution:   Town Council requests the LGWCD to authorize the transfer of south “B” 
Road after the “B” Road Easement Map is completed and recorded to the Town.   

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

 
The Town is working with the developers on proposed projects at Southern Boulevard and “B” 
Road that will be providing funds to the Town to resurface “B” Road from Southern Boulevard to 
Okeechobee Boulevard.  
 
In order for the Town to oversee and accept the improvements on “B” Road, transfer of the road 
must be completed by the LGWCD. 

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
    Draft Letter from Town Attorney Mike Cirullo to LGWCD Attorney Mary Viator 
 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

 Not applicable. 
 5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  Authorize the Town Attorney to submit the request for the transfer of South “B” Road to the 
Town.   

62 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

{00043369.1 1574-1004800 } Please reply to Fort Lauderdale Office 

 

January 7, 2015 
 
 

Mary Viator, Esquire 
Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP 
One Clearlake Centre 
250 South Australian Avenue, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
 
 RE: Town of Loxahatchee Groves/”B” Road 
 
Dear Mary: 
 
The Town is working with the developers on proposed projects at Southern Boulevard and “B” 
Road, which will include, as conditions of approval for each project, the improvement of “B” 
Road from Southern Boulevard to Okeechobee Boulevard.  Pursuant to the proposed conditions 
of approval, the portions of “B” Road from the entrance onto the new Palm Beach State College 
Campus on “B” Road north to Okeechobee Boulevard is to be resurfaced by the Town using 
funds provided by the developers of the projects.   
 
The current policy and understanding between the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District 
and the Town of Loxahatchee Groves is that roads designated as District Roads would be 
transferred to the Town after being resurfaced.  However, in this particular case, in order for 
the Town to oversee and accept the improvements on “B” Road to be completed by the 
developers and Palm Beach State College for the southernmost portion of “B” Road, north to 
the proposed entrance to PBSC, and for the Town to complete the resurfacing work of “B” Road 
from that point north to Okeechobee Boulevard itself, the Town will need the District to 
transfer “B” Road after the “B” Road Easement Map is completed and recorded, but prior to the 
commencement of any resurfacing work.   
 
The Town Council has requested that the District Board of Supervisors authorize the transfer of  
“B” Road to the Town upon receipt by the District Administrator of the written request of the 
Town Manager, subsequent to the recordation of the Easement Map for “B” Road.   

63 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mary Viator, Esquire 
Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP 
January 7, 2015 
Page 2 
________________________________________   
 

{00043369.1 1574-1004800 }  

 
 
Upon your receipt of this request, please contact me should you have any questions or require 
any additional information.   
 
     Sincerely, 
 
 
     MICHAEL D. CIRULLO, JR. 
     Town Attorney, Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
 
 
 
cc: Mayor David Browning 
 Members of the Town Council 
 William Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 
       

64 of 64   TC Agenda Packet 01-06-2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	2.a. Consent Agenda - Attorney Invoice
	2.b. Consent Agenda - Minutes 10/21/2014
	6.a. Ordinance No. 2014-12 
	7.a. Resolution No. 2015-01
	7.b. Resolution No. 2015-02
	7.c. Resolution No. 2015-03
	8.a. Manager's Report
	10.a. New Business - West D Road
	10.b. New Business - B Road Transfer



